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PORT OF THE ISLANDS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
UTILITY RATE WORKSHOP & REGULAR BOARD MEETING
Board of Supervisors Agenda for March 21, 2025

Agenda

Friday, March 21, 2025, 9:30 a.m.
Orchid Cove Clubhouse, 25005 Peacock Lane
Naples, FL 34114

Note: Requests to address the Board on subjects which are not on today's agenda, will
be accommodated under “Public Comments”.

Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or
physical impairment should contact the District Office at (239) 592.9115 at least five
calendar days prior to the meeting.

1. P[edge of Allegiance
2. Roll CaII/Ap;ﬁi;ovaI of the Agenda
3. Public Comments
4. Approval of Minutes — February 2025
5. Utility Rate Workshop — February 2025
6. Manager's Report
a. Ulility Rate Meter Equivalency
b. Rear Yard Drainage, Venus Cay
c. 60 Day Utilities AR Summary
7. Financials — January 2024
8. Attorney's Report
a. SFWMD License Agreement
9. Engineer's Report

10.0ld Business



11.New Business

12. Supervisors’ Request
a. Old Hotel Site

13. Public Comments

14.Adjourn — Next meeting will be on April 18, 2025, at 9:30 a.m.
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PORT OF THE ISLANDS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
NAPLES, FLORIDA
Utility Rate Workshop and Regular Meeting of the Board of
Supervisors
February 21, 2025

The regular meeting of the Port of the Islands Community Improvement District Board of
Supervisors was held on Friday, February 21, 2025, at 9:30 a.m. at the Orchid Cove
Clubhouse, 25005 Peacock Lane, Naples, Florida.

SUPERVISORS PRESENT

Steve McNamee, Chairman

Dan Truckey, Vice Chairman

Russell Kish, Supervisor

Kevin Baird, Supervisor

Anna-Lise Hansen, Supervisor

ALSO PRESENT

Neil Dorrill, Manager, Dorrill Management Group

Kevin Carter, Manager, Dorrill Management Group

Zachary Lombardo, District Counsel, Via Zoom

Matt Gilinsky, Florida Utility Solutions

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The pledge of allegiance was recited in unison.

ROLL CALL/APPROVAL OF AGENDA

All five Supervisors were present in person, establishing a quorum. The meeting was
convened at 9:30 a.m. The meeting was also properly noticed. The notice and affidavit
are on file with the District Office at 5672 Strand Court, Naples, FL 34110.

On a MOTION by Mr. Baird and a second by Mr. Truckey the agenda was
approved as presented, with all in favor.
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PUBLIC COMMENT

No public comment was received at this time.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES - JANUARY 2025

The January minutes were accepted as presented on a MOTION by Ms, Hansen, a
second by Mr. Kish, and all in favor.

UTILITY RATE WORKSHOP - JANUARY 2025
A. Utility Operations

Mr. Gilinsky reported that all operations at the facility throughout the month were in
compliance with both contract and regulatory requirements. All wastewater and water
distribution standards were met, and the reuse pump system functioned as expected.
The facility received 2.28 million gallons of wastewater, produced 3.77 million gallons of
water, and the reuse pump station distributed 12 million gallons in January. There were
no meter readings in January, but all hydrants were flushed, and 350 gallons of chlorine
were used during the month. Additionally, all pump stations were inspected weekly, and
odor control checks were performed.

A booster pump that supplied the RO trains was disassembled and removed due to a
leak and erosion build-up. It was sent off for rebanding and should be returned next
week. A leak was also repaired in an old irrigation system in front of the plant, and new
meters were installed for a new construction home near one of the retention ponds.
There were no accidents or OSHA reportable incidents, and all required safety training
was conducted. The replacement filter has not arrived yet. The engineer has contacted
the sales representative but has not received a response.

Mr. McNamee asked if there were any issues that needed to be addressed or parts
ordered. Mr. Gilinsky responded that plant upgrades are still on track to meet the DEP
deadline. The plant is also in the process of finding a new company to inspect the
ground storage tanks, as the previous provider is no longer in business. Other than that,
everything is in good shape. Ms. Hansen inquired if the flush valve at the end of Orchid
Cove, which activates every night or every other night, had been looked at. Mr. Gilinsky
confirmed it will be reprogrammed. Mr. Truckey expressed dissatisfaction with the
FRWA studies, particularly regarding their handling of the lead and arsenic issue. He
noted that they avoided addressing the source of these contaminants and how to
resolve it. He also mentioned that if the FRWA does not come to calibrate the meters as
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promised, he would not be willing to continue paying them an annual fee, especially if
they are unresponsive by next month.

Mr. Truckey inquired about the hole on Newport Drive, asking whether it had been
closed. It was confirmed that the hole had not yet been repaired, but Soto is responsible
for the fix. Mr. Baird will follow up with Soto to ensure the issue is addressed. Mr. Kish
also asked if there is any planned maintenance for the underground culverts on
Newport Drive. Ms. Hansen clarified that this is Soto’s responsibility. Mr. Kish
emphasized that they need to be inspected. Ms. Hansen requested the engineer to
create a map of all stormwater drains to clarify the CID’s maintenance responsibilities.
Once she receives the map, Soto will begin cleaning them out, as he typically does
before the rainy season. Mr. Truckey raised a question about the chlorine levels at
Newport Drive compared to what is being added at the plant. Mr. Gilinsky explained that
the plant's chlorine level is at 3, so it typically reaches 1 at the end of Newport, with
anything above 0.6 being acceptable. Mr. Kish requested that the quarterly water testing
results be included in the utility report moving forward. Mr. Gilinsky said the reject pond
behind the gun club, which is also Soto’s responsibility, needs attention.

The Parks Department will begin Phase 1 of their work on Well Road. This phase
involves berming out in the Everglades, during which they will be adjusting the berms—
though not necessarily in the District's favor. Next week they will be moving equipment
onto the site. Phase 2 will involve the installation of new culverts on Well Road. Mr.
McNamee asked whether an emergency plan needs to be in place in case of a water
line break. Mr. Truckey stated that if a break occurs, a temporary line will need to be
installed quickly. Mr. McNamee emphasized the importance of having a contingency
plan in place, given the likelihood of a break. Mr. Truckey expressed that he was not.in
favor of purchasing emergency parts "just in case." He shared that FEMA is moving
forward with plans for a new water line, and the expected cost estimates will be
available next week as FEMA had to price it out themselves. If a favorable offer is
received from FEMA, the hope is to have the new line installed before the next
hurricane season.

B. Utility Receivables Report
Item D in the Managers Report
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MANAGERS REPORT
A. Old Hotel Site

Mr. Dorrill met with the County and Deputy County Managers two weeks ago to discuss
the potential acquisition of the old hotel site or its declaration as surplus property. The
County Manager suggested that the District consider an unsolicited proposal to acquire
the site, in order to cover the costs the County incurred for demolition. When Mr. Dorrill
first raised this issue about a year ago, he was informed that the County spent
approximately $450,000 on the demolition and removal of the old hotel. There is an
opportunity to expand the main parcel, either with the current or a future developer. The
Board will need to provide direction on how to proceed, and if they remain interested,
Mr. Lombardo may be asked to draft a purchase offer to submit to the County.

Mr. McNamee shared that Ml Homes ended their agreement with Lindsay Case,
although he is unsure if this is permanent. Ml Homes’ concerns stem from noise and
potential pollution from the nearby gun club. Initially, Ml Homes was interested in
purchasing this land from the County for development. Mr. McNamee stated that if the
District could acquire the property for $450,000, it would be a great deal, even if the
funds need to be borrowed through a low-interest loan. The land is likely worth more
than $450,000 and the District would be able to control what is built there. Mr.
McNamee asked for input from the community, and the consensus from the Board was
that the acquisition is worthwhile.

Ms. Oswald asked whether there are any guarantees that there is no ashestos or
hazardous materials buried on the site from previous clearing activities. Mr. Dorrill
responded that there would be a due diligence period allowing for an investigation o
determine if any risks, such as hazardous materials, are present.

Mr. Lombardo was asked to draft a purchase offer. He inquired about the plan for
sourcing the funds, as this will impact the offer draft. The Board was in favor of using
funds on hand rather than pursing a loan.

B. Johnson Engineering Hydrology Agreement

The hydrology study is a requirement for the renewal of the wastewater treatment plant
permit. Specifically, it involves further evaluation and testing related to the monitoring
well that shows high levels of lead and arsenic near the reclaim pad. Mr. Dorrill believes
the District will be the direct client for this project and that it will not be routed through
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the civil engineer as a subconsultant. The total scope of work outlined in the proposal
amounts to $17,890.

Mr. Truckey shared that they have been in ongoing discussions with the DEP for the
past year regarding the land and the test well. They have asked the DEP to conduct
testing and address the issue. [In-house testing has been done on the facility building,
effluent, brine from the RO process, and well water entering the plant, and the District
has confirmed that they are not polluting the land. However, the DEP has been reluctant
to test the source of lead and arsenic, so Mr. Truckey escalated the issue to the EPA.
The EPA stated that this is a state matter and that the DEP, which they fund, should
handle it. The DEP's response was to incorporate this testing into the water and sewer
plant permit, meaning the study must be completed and results submitted to the DEP by
August to avoid permit violations.

Mr. Truckey made a MOTION to move forward with the hydrology study with
Johnson Engineering for $17,890. Mr. Baird made a second and all were in favor.

Mr. Kish asked what will happen once the source of the poliution is identified. Mr.
McNamee explained that the resulis will be submitted to the DEP, and it will be difficult
for them to ignore the findings. Joe Levy from Windward Cay asked Mr. Lombardo if
there is any recourse if the source of the contamination is determined. Mr. Lombardo
stated that it will depend on what the tests reveal. If the tests can trace the
contamination to its source, there is typically an opportunity for recourse. However, for
now, the study is a permit requirement, and the District must remain in compliance.
Discussions about potential recourse can take place once the data is available.

C. SFWMD License Agreement

Mr. Dorrill and Mr. Lombardo held a teleconference with the SFWMD regarding the
license agreement to use the District's parcel, as previously discussed. During the call,
Mr. Dorrill also took the opportunity to request that their local offices evaluate a shoal in
the canal that appears to be causing issues for boats passing through at low tide. The
SFWMD agreed to follow up with their maintenance crews to address this. Mr.
McNamee inquired whether they plan to dredge the shoal, to which Mr. Dorrill
responded that it's a possibility.

The standard license agreement was presented at the teleconference and SFWMD
suggested some revisions, including the addition of a substantial use fee. Mr. Lombardo
noted that the revisions shifted the agreement from a license to an easement, extended
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the term, and modified certain operating hours. Mr. Lombardo recommended having Mr.
Schaifer from the SFWMD explain the rationale behind the requested changes so the
Board can fully understand the request. He also suggested that Mr. Schaffer discuss the
project’'s goals and why it's important that the requested changes align with those
objectives.

Mr. Bob Schaffer introduced his team. He is the acquisition lead for the real estate
bureau, with Mr. Ashie Akpoji serving as the engineering and construction manager,
and Ms. Holly Andreotta as the permitting and wildlife manager for the project. Ms.
Andreotta explained that the manatee mitigation feature was designed as a warm water
refugia for manatees, which was a requirement for both federal and state permits. The
feature was completed in 2016. However, after Hurricanes Irma and {an, significant
issues were observed, and repairs are now needed. Sedimentation, erosion, and
sediment buildup within the oxbow and pools have led to shoaling, which is hindering
the feature’s intended operation of providing warm water habitat for manatees.

Repairs are mandated to ensure the feature continues to serve as a warm water refugia
for manatees. The team has been collaborating with the Fish and Wildlife Commission,
the Service, the Corps, and DEP to develop a plan for the repairs. The first phase
involves dredging the oxbow and the three pools. The oxbow has accumulated about
one to two feet of sediment, while the pools—critical to the warming process—have
about five to six feet of sediment. This material will be dredged and used on the uplands
portion of the feature. In addition to dredging, erosion and sedimentation on the side
slopes and the south connection, where shoaling is evident by the boat barrier, must
also be addressed. To prevent future erosion, rip rap will be placed along these areas.
The project is necessary, and the funding has already been secured. The team has also
applied for the required permits. As part of the project, they are working to secure
access to the District's property along the road to serve as a laydown and staging area.
This will allow materials fo be transported via barge to move equipment down {o the
feature and have a small trailer onsite. Since the feature is located on an island, access
is difficult, so this property by the road is essential for completing the necessary repairs.

Mr. McNamee inquired about dredging high spots that are causing difficulties for boats
to pass through. Ms. Andreotta responded that sedimentation in the south connection,
where the boat barrier is located, will be dredged back to the as-built plans. No further
extensions can be made. Access to this feature is not permitted, and if the issue is
unrelated to the feature, permits and funding will not cover it. The SFWMD requested a
pin or map to better understand the area Mr. McNamee is referring to, in order to
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determine whether it is part of the construction efforts to repair the feature. Mr.
McNamee agreed to provide that information.

Rita B from Orchid Cove asked if there is any monitoring of the number of manatees
that the project serves. Ms. Andreotta explained that part of the Picayune Strand project
to the north aims to reduce the freshwater flow from the Faka Union canals that is
impacting the ecology of Florida Bay and the environment. This is a restoration project
in the northern part of Picayune Strand. As these harmful flows are eliminated, it's
important to note that they were inadvertently acting as a warm water refugia for
manatees. Since these flows are being removed, a manatee mitigation project was
developed to provide an alternative warm water refugia.

The SFWMD and FWC are actively monitoring the Port of the Islands basin and the
surrounding canal, including the manatee mitigation project. These agencies, along with
the service and commission, are heavily involved in ongoing monitoring efforts in the
area. Because flows are still occurring over the Faka Union weir just north of the road
and the final plug to stop the flow is not set to be installed until January by the Corps,
there is still warm water refugia coming over the weir near the road. Most of the
manatees are still going up to the Port of the Islands basin and utilizing the existing
warm water refugia. Once the plug is in place, monitoring will continue, as it has been in
place since 2016, because manatees need time to find and become familiar with the
new refugia. Up to 20 manatees, primarily during colder months, have been observed
using the area, along with dolphins and crocodiles. The manatees are still in the
process of learning the location and how to access the new refugia. Since the northern
area is still providing warm-water habitat, most manatees continue to go to the marina,
but over time, they will [earn to use the new refugia. The flow changes will not affect
water levels in Orchid Cove.

Mr. Schaffer shared that the big-picture issue between an easement and a license is
that this is a publicly funded project, and the SFWMD is committing public funds to enter
into and begin a project. Access to the land must be continuous. A license can be
terminated at any time, whereas an easement provides a permit and interest for the
duration of the term. The proposed term is 18 months from the project start. They
cannot commit to the project with the possibility of termination, while an easement
guarantees a permanent interest for that period. When these types of easement
agreements are made, and funds are paid, they require approval from the SFWMD
governing board. The site is typically exclusive to the SFWMD, which is important for
security, for keeping materials exclusive to the site, and for managing contractor work
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schedules, which often start early in the morning and continue through the day. There
are usually no restrictions on working hours, as the goal is to complete the project as
quickly as possible without hindering contractor productivity. With board approval, they
could potentially reach a $50,000 figure. Mr. McNamee mentioned that if the land were
sold, they would make $50,000 to $60,000 in carrying costs. Mr. Lombardo asked Mr.
Schaffer for clarification if the $50,000 was related to an exclusive agreement with no
restrictions on contracting hours. Mr. Schaffer responded that to gain approval from the
governing board, he was contemplating a maximum change to the terms to make the
site exclusive, for security and other reasons. If it were not exclusive, it would come
down to security concerns and the interaction of anyone within their site. ldeally, they
are looking for exclusive use.

Mr. Schaffer requested that work begin as early as 7:.00 AM and continue at least until
6:00 PM. Mr. Akpoji clarified that they often hold safety meetings around 7:00-7:30 AM
and sometimes finish their workday around 3:30 PM, while others may go as late as
6:00 PM. He does not believe his contractors will be there for the full 18 months but will
complete their due diligence and try to finish as soon as possible. Ms. Andreotta
explained that time is of the essence because they want the dredging work completed
quickly so the manatee warm water refugia is operating optimally. Sediment buildup
could be interfering with the warm water coming up. They want to finish dredging and
most of the repair work before the next cold season, ensuring the refugia is available for
manatees by December 1. They are aiming to move forward with the project as quickly
as possible. Mr. Akpoji mentioned that they work on calendar days and generally do not
work on weekends. He also said it's good that they can connect to a water meter and
pay for the water used instead of bringing in their own. If there is electricity available,
they can also connect to that and pay for its usage. Safety is very important to his
contractors, and he conducts inspections to ensure the site remains clean. The site will
be left in the condition it was found or better, and a pre- and post-inspection of the
seawall will be conducted. No trees will need to be removed.

Richard Mishler, a landowner in Port of the Islands since 2001, asked if Ms. Andreotta
had been involved in the project since its original build. She confirmed that she had
been involved since before construction. He asked how often repairs will be needed and
what the alternatives are if the CID does not approve the land use. He further asked if
failure to gain CID approval would jeopardize future endeavors. Mr. McNamee replied
that it is in the CID’s best interest to work with them, and vice versa. He added that the
$50,000 would help cover the land purchase costs for the CID. Mr. Mishler stated that
he feels SFWMD has done a poor job of communicating the project to the local
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residents, and he doesn’t believe the manatees are concerned about human activity in
the area, as they are often found under the dock where he resides.

Ms. Andreotta explained that the Picayune Strand Restoration Project is an Army Corps
project, and the SFWMD worked as a partner on the manatee mitigation feature,

helping design and build it for the Corps. At the Port of the Islands marina, there is
supposed to be an education center, though it is currently being used as a storage
room. The educational outreach portion was the Army Corps' responsibility. The Fish
and Wildlife Service (FWS) and the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission
(FWC), both federal and state wildlife agencies, dictated the conditions around public
use and access of the feature. SFWMD is complying with these requirements, which are
part of the larger Picayune Strand project permits.

Mr. Dorrill stated that staff is inclined to approve the easement, subject to Mr.
Lombardo’s final review, based on the reasons discussed. Mr. McNamee expressed
interest in possibly increasing the amount to $60,000. Mr. Schaffer said that whatever
the final terms are, he will present the decision to the governing board. Mr. Truckey
noted that the project site is located near a bedroom community. Mr. Dorrill assured that
they have made it clear that riprap will not be loaded onto a barge before 7:00 AM, nor
will a loud diesel generator be started. Ms. Andreotta clarified that 7:00 AM is when they
typically arrive at the site, conduct safety meetings, and complete daily planning tasks.
Work is unlikely to start until 8:00 AM.

Mr. Akpoiji said there will always be a project manager on-site and a contact person
available. Mr. Lombardo suggested that the easement document set clear rules instead
of relying on ad hoc discussions later. Ms. Andreotta confirmed that their contract
documents specify dust control measures that contractors must follow, and the project
manager on-site will implement these controls. She also inspects the site with DEP to
ensure compliance. She asked if someone from the CID board could be appointed as
the point of contact, with the project manager serving as the SFWMD’s point of contact.
This way, if any complaints arise, they can be communicated directly. The dredging
should be completed by December 1.

Mr. Lombardo said he can make the necessary changes to the document and present it
fo the Board at next month’s meeting if that works for Mr. Schaffer. Mr. Lombardo also
requested the dust control language from Mr. Schaffer that is included in their
subcontracts. Ms. Jansen requested contact with SFWMD members to discuss the fate
of the 500 manatees previously reported in the Port of the Islands basin. Ms. Andreotta
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provided her email and will connect her with someone at FWC to obtain that historical
data.

D. Aged Receivables Summary

Mr. Dorrill presented the aged receivables report. He mentioned there was one account
he would like to keep on the list and recommended writing off the balance. Staff has
worked diligently on the receivables, and the total amount in question was $8,189. At
the top of the page is an account for 172 Venus Cay, where a payment was made just
before Christmas, and the account is still being tracked. The remaining receivables are
from 2023 and are for relatively small amounts. However, two accounts were
particularly disappointing: one at 179 Eveningstar Cay for $1,800 and another at 123
Newport Drive for $622. These are older accounts, and staff is now taking a more
aggressive approach. Mr. Carter works closely with Mr. Mitch Gilbert to send final
notices and door hangers for shutoffs, which has significantly reduced the number of
receivables on the report.

Mr. Truckey asked if these receivables were from owners or renters. Mr. Dorrill replied
that they were from owners, and deposits are in place. Mr. Truckey then asked if the
properties have since been sold. Mr. Dorrill confirmed that the properties now have
current accounts under new owners’ names. Mr. McNamee inquired whether the $1,800
account could be sent to collections. Mr. Dorrill responded that he was not opposed to
that. However, he pointed out that the District's policy is unclear about whether or not
the new owner can be held responsible for the unresolved bill in the absence of a
deposit. Mr. Lombardo suggested reviewing the policy and providing an opinion before
pursuing the new owner for the debt. The matter will be continued for one month, and
current owners will be contacted if they owe more than $200. Mr. Lombardo will review
the policy to determine if new owners can be pursued for old debts.

Mr. McNamee expressed concerns about placing this burden on new owners. Mr.
Truckey then asked what measures are being taken to prevent this from happening
again. Mr. Dorrill explained that the receivables are now being tracked bi-monthly, with
a much more aggressive approach, and shutoff procedures are followed as necessary.
If the balance is less than $100, those amounts will be written off. Mr. McNamee asked
whether the late fee could be raised or if that would require a policy change. Mr.
Lombardo responded that any change to the late fee structure would need to be made
through the policy documents. He offered to present a proposed change to the late fee
structure next month. Additionally, Mr. Dorrill will provide a 60-day receivables report in
the backup materials for next month’s meeting. Mr. Lombardo will also explore the rules
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and policies required to change the late fee and look into the possibility of requiring
payment before the transfer of title.

E. Utility Rate Analysis Direction

Mr. Dorrill noted that page 16 shows the hypothetical rate required to fully implement
the recommendations from the study, which includes the base rate as well as the short-
term capital items outlined in the five-year plan. For example, for a single-family home
using 5,000 gallons per month, the bimonthly bill would be $310. This could come as a
shock if people don't consider that current water bills are subsidized through non-ad
valorem assessments. Mr. McNamee stated that utility rates haven't been raised in
years, which was a mistake. He acknowledged that a higher utility bill is inevitable but
emphasized that significant improvements to infrastructure and the water treatment
plant would bring them up to top-notch standards, avoiding costly rebuilds in the future.
The rates will still likely be as cheap or cheaper than those in neighboring areas. They
will be workshopping next year's budget in May.

Mr. Dorrill added that he needs to know at the May workshop if the board is considering
removing the non-ad valorem assessment from the utility fund. For the single-family
home scenario, the base rate would be $128 for water, $128 for sewer, with a
volumetric rate of about $11 per 1,000 gallons for both water and sewer. The other
accounts are tied to meter size. The decision fo submeter will be a policy decision for a
later date. Mr. Dorrill further explained that if they want to present the budget in May
without the ad valorem subsidy, utility rates will need to increase to offset the loss, or if
the removal is phased in, that decision should be made in May.

Mr. Truckey raised concerns about bulk accounts, such as the two-story building at the
marina. He noted that people with bulk meters would pay half or less of what everyone
else pays, which he didn’t feel was fair. Mr. McNamee asked if Collier County was
interested in purchasing the utility. Mr. Dorrill responded that this conversation occurred
about a year ago and that the decision is ultimately up to the County Manager and the
County Utility Director. He mentioned that if he were in their shoes, he would pursue the
acquisition the same way they did with the Golden Gate City and Orange Tree
community utilities near the fairgrounds, where small subregional utilities were bought to
help build the customer base and enable future growth. Mr. McNamee said that this
option should be explored further. The utility consultant was asked to develop a plan
that closely aligns with the County's method, and this plan reflects that format to attract
the County's interest. Mr. Dorrill agreed to request further analysis on the two-meter
base rate for the other compound meters.
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Mr. McNamee also expressed that he doesn’t agree with raising the reclaimed water _
pricing, which is currently set at 75%, with a recommendation to increase it to 100%. He
would prefer to see a middle-ground solution. Mr. Kish clarified that the base rate is
$256 every other month. Mr. Dorrill will have more information to share by April. Mr.
Truckey emphasized the need to have most items ready for approval by March, as past
discussions have been delayed and they've been pressed up against deadlines. Mr.
Dorrill assured that he would reach out to Mr. Ori to get answers to 4-5 questions and
add them to next month’s agenda.

FINANCIALS - DECEMBER 2024

Mr. Dorrill presented the first-quarter financials as of December 31, 2024. The District's
cash position is $5.4 million, with $4,073,000 in the operating fund and $1,320,000 in
the utility fund. The District also has fixed assets, net of depreciation, totaling $8.3
million. Payables amount to $155,000. Additionally, $458,000 was received in non-ad
valorem assessments, which represents approximately 70-71% of the total revenues for
the year. Total expenditures are $127,000 below budget.

The financials were accepted as presented on a MOTION by Mr. Kish, a second by
Mr. Truckey, and all in favor.

Mr. McNamee stated that since the M! Homes deal fell through, next month they need
to address Lindsey Case's ERU six-month extension, which expires on March 22. He
reached out to Mr. Case to confirm whether he intended to honor the commitment, but
received no response. Mr. Lombardo suggested sending a courtesy notice about the
upcoming deadline. He noted that the agreement includes default provisions, which will
be enforced if payment is not made on time.

Mr. McNamee also mentioned that the gun club, which owns over 50 acres of land, is
only paying for 8 ERCs. Mr. Truckey reviewed this today and found that their total non-
ad valorem assessment is $9,000. Mr. McNamee expressed that he believes the gun
club is not being assessed fairly and should be charged at least 200 O&Ms, similar to
Parcel 13. He asked when this issue could be addressed and changed.

Mr. Lombardo explained that this matter was raised during the last rate-setting process,
and the gun club sent counsel to argue their position. If the methodology were to be
revised, it could be addressed then. Mr. Lombardo clarified that any change would need
to be in accordance with the budget cycle, and it would involve a comprehensive
evaluation of the entire system, not just a single property. The original hearing
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determined that the gun club was to be considered a golf course for assessment
purposes. A courtesy reminder will be sent by Mr. Lombardo o Mr. Case about the
upcoming deadline.

ATTORNEY’S REPORT

The pending litigation with Premier District Management regarding public records has
received a settlement offer, along with an additional production of documents yesterday.
Mr. Lombardo requested an executive session to discuss the settlement offer, which will
take place before the next meeting on March 21st at 8:30 a.m. Mediation for this case is
scheduled for the first week of April, with the goal of resolving the matter before
mediation.

The Prepmac litigation involved a late attempt by the plaintiffs to add a claim for
damages. A motion to strike that claim was filed, and the court granted the motion. This
means Prepmac's attempt to recover losses was denied, which is good news for the
District.

ENGINEER’S REPORT

No engineering report was given at this time.

OLD BUSINESS

No old business was discussed.

NEW BUSINESS

No new business was discussed.

SUPERVISORS REQUESTS
A. Heavy Metal Testing, Permission On Lindsey Case

Mr. Kish stated that the heavy metal testing requires Mr. Case's permission before
proceeding on his property. Mr. Truckey mentioned that he plans to speak with them,
and if permission is denied, they will need to go back to the DEP, who will have to
conduct the testing on the property. A plan has already been drawn up detailing the type
of samples to be taken and specifying that the testing must occur a certain distance
from the test wells.
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PUBLIC COMMENTS

No public comments were received at this time.

ADJOURNMENT

The next meeting will be on March 21, 2025, at 9:30 a.m. A closed door executive
session will occur before at 8:30 a.m. On a MOTION by Mr. McNamee and a second
by Mr. Truckey, with all in favor, the meeting was adjourned at 11:30 a.m.
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Summary

Operations at the facilities throughout the month were in accordance with contract and
regulatory requirements.

Iltems Requiring Approval

We would ask your consideration and approval of the following:

Request Impact Est. Cost

Operations
e Compliance

All Wastewater Plant requirements were met.

All Water distribution requirements were met.

e Reuse Pump Station Status:
Reuse Pump System functioning properly for outgoing pressure at plant.

Station on canal operating on 2 pumps and not communicating. Generator does
not run.

¢ Performance metrics:

Wastewater Treatment Plant

e 2.28 million gallons of wastewater received and treated in February

Water Treatment
e Produced and distributed 3.77 million gallons in February

Reuse
e Distributed 8.43 million gallons in February

Monthly Report




. Current Month Prior Month
PeiAxiktiiance Mefres February 2025 January 2025
Wastewater treated 2,275,562 2,284,237
Sludge disposed - gallons 0 0
Reuse Water Pumped 8,426,785 12,067,019
Odor Complaints 0 0
Number of line breaks 1 1
Auto Flushers Flushed 9 9
Meters Read 860 0
Meters Re-read 4 0
Consumables Current Month Prior Month
Chlorine Usage 870 350
Water Usage Complaints 0 0

Maintenance and Repair

Preventive Maintenance

Inspected all pump stations weekly
Odor control weekly checks performed
Work continues on plant upgrades and repairs that were previously approved

Additional Maintenance

Clean and restore flow to analyzers

Add new analyzer to SCADA

Install new reuse sample tap

Install new SCADA antenna

Clear vegetation from around monitoring wells

Replaced blower belts

Installed two new SCADA control panels for the Cays and Newport lift stations
Repaired backflow leaks

Health & Safety

Zero LTls and OSHA recordable incidents occurred during the month
Safety training includes daily tailgate talks concerning daily events —confined
space, lightning safety, seatbelts, housekeeping, and other safety related concerns

Monthly Report
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SCHEDULE A
WATER, WASTEWATER, AND IRRIGATION RATES, FEES AND CHARGES

POTABLE WATER

Commodity Rates $3.38
per 1,000 galfons

WASTEWATER

Commodity Rates $6.94
per 1,000 gallons [af 75% of potable water usage]

IRRIGATION WATER

Single Family Residential Irrigation Rate

Bl-Monthly Consumption Tiers {per 1,000 gallons)

0 to 20,000 gallons $1.45
20,001 to 40,000 gallons $2.18
40,001 to 60,000 gallons $2.90
60,001 o 80,000 gallons $3.64
Greater than 80,000 gallons $4.36

Multi-Family Residential Irrigation Rate
Bl-Monthly Consumption Tiers (per 1,000 gallons)

0 to 12,000 galions $1.45
12,001 1o 24,000 gallons $2.18
24,001 to 36,000 gallons $2.90
36,001 to 48,000 gallons $3.64
Greater than 48,000 gallons $4.36
HOTEL, COMMERCIAL, AND RV CUSTOMER CLASS IRRIGATION RATE
0 to 12,000 gallons $1.45
12,001 to 24,000 gallons $2.18
24,001 to 36,000 gallons $2.90
36,001 to 48,000 gallons $3.64

Greater than 48,000 gallons $4.36
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As can be seen above and assuming the implementation of the recommended rate adjustments, the Operating /
Capital Reserve cash balances for the System are anticipated to achieve the targeted ending cash balance over
the Forecast Period, which was set at a minimum target of 250 days of operating expenses for the purposes of
this evaluation. The targeted 250 days operating reserve balance is generally looked as being favorable by credit
rating agencies but is considered as being at the lower end of the days of cash (note that it does not include
capital funds). Any unrestricted funds above the minimum target level would be available for any System
purpose, including increased major maintenance or additional capital project funding that may periodically
occur, and also serves as a hedge in case of any extraordinary event that may occur that would affect operations
or rate revenue collectability (e.g., a significant storm event).

Proposed Rates for Utility Service

The District currently charges the base facility (fixed) charge as a non-ad valorem assessment as provided by
Florida Statutes, Chapter 197. This charge currently accounts for approximately 70% of the total rate revenue
of the System. The District Board is considering adjusting this method of cost recovery from a non-ad valorem
assessment that is billed to property owners to a meter-based system that is billed to the customers of the System
on a basis consistent with the billing of the water and wastewater flow charges. In many instances the utility
account and the owner of the property are consistent (primarily in the single-family residential and commercial
customer service types) but there are many property owners that do not directly receive a utility bill that pay the
base facility charge (primarily master-metered accounts such as condominiums where the units are separately
owned but the utility flow charges are billed to 2 Home Owners Association or its equivalent).

In the establishment of the proposed meter-based rate alternative, the following assumptions were made:

® The current base charge cost recovery (i.e., the non-ad valorem assessment) would be allocated
between water and wastewater on an equal (50% / 50%) basis and no base charge would be allocated
to the irrigation system at this time (no detailed fixed asset data was available to provide a basis for the
allocation of costs among all utilities so an equal allocation among the primary utilities was assumed).

® The base charges would be based on the size of the meter serving the current customer account and
would recognize certain meter equivalent factors predicated on the instantaneous demand relationships
of the meters, which is used by the Florida Public Service Commission and the Collier County Water
and Wastewater Authority in the regulation of non-exempt private utilities and many public utilities
throughout the State. This rate structure is also consistent with the current structure used by Collier
County for its retail customers served by the Collier County Water-Wastewater District (the “County
Utility”). The meter equivalent factors would be as follows:

{Remainder of page intentionally left blank}
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Meter Equivalent Factors

Meter Size Meter Equivalent Factor [1]
5/8-inch 1.0
3/4-inch 15

1-inch 25
1 1/2-inch 5.0
2-inch 8.0
3-inch 15.0
4-inch 25.0
§-inch 50.0
8-inch 80.0
10-inch 115.0

[11 Meter equivalent factors based on instantaneous demand relafionships
{gallons per minute) based on information published by the American Water
Works Assaciation.

e The amount of base charge revenue to be recovered from the meter-base facility charges would be
designed to recover the same amount of revenue as currently being recovered before the application of
any discount for 'early payment as provided by Florida Statutes (a “revenue-neutral” rate adjustment).
This rate structure modification would then be subject to the additional rate adjustments as previously
discussed in this report to fully recover the cost of providing utility service.

e  Because there is a separate irrigation system that provides alternative water for discretionary irrigation
water use, all potable water is considered to be used for domestic (indoor, essential) use. As such there
is no wastewater cap for residential service or flow reduction percentage to reduce billed wastewater
flows for an outdoor {(non-sewer) use adjustment for the other customer classes.

e The ERCs currently being billed as non-ad valorem assessment when compared to the application of
the meter equivalent factors to the meters currently in service is relatively close as shown below:

o Actual ERCs assessed on 2024 Property Tax Bill = 743

o Estimated ERCs based on Meter Equivalent Factors = 731

o The master-metered accounts and the commercial accounts have the same service applicability
provisions and should have the same rate structure for all utility services, including irrigation water
service. The application of the irrigation rates currently for commercial service should be applied to
the master metered residential accounts.
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Based on these rate design parameters, the following bi-monthly potable water and wastewater rates were
developed based on the meter-equivalency approach:

Schedule of Bi-monthly Alternative Rates for Service — Meter Equivalent Basis [1]

Potable Water Rates Wastewater Rates
Single-family Residential Service:
Base Facility Charge — per Meter:
Meter Size:
5/8-inch $128.38 $128.38
3/4-inch . 192.58 128.38
1-inch 320.94 128.38
1 1/2-inch 641.80 128.38
2-inch 1,027.03 128.38
Consumption Charge — per 1,000 Gailons:
All Metered Potable Water Gallons $3.65 $7.50
Master Metered Residential and Commercial:
Base Facllity Charge — per meter:
Meter Size:
5/8-inch $128.38 $128.38
3/4-inch 192.56 192,56
1-inch 320.94 320.94
11/2-inch 641.90 641.90
2-inch 1,027.03 1,027.03
3-inch 1,925.68 1,825.68
4-inch 3,200.47 3,200.47
B-inch 6,418.95 6,418.85
8-inch 10,270.31 10,270.31
10-inch 14,763.58 14,763.58

Consumption Charge — per 1,000 Gallons:
All Metered Potable Water Gallons $3.65 $7.50
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Based on these rate design parameters, the following monthly irrigation water rates were developed:

Schedule of Fiscal Year 2025 Monthly Water Rates for Service [1]

Irrigation Service

Base Facility Charge (Non-ad Valorem

nfa

Assessment — Expressed Menthly) [1]

Charge per 1,000 Gallons {All Gallons):

Tier 1[1]
Tier 2 [1]
Tier 3[1]
Tier 4 [1]
Tier 5[t}

$1.57
2.35
3.13
3.93
4.71

[11 Water Tiers by service type are summarized below:
i

Tier 1
Tier 2
Tier 3
Tier 4
Tier 5

Consumption Blocks — Expressed in Gallons

Bi-monthly Single-family Monthly Multi-family Residential and
Residential (per Account) Commercial Service {per Account)
0to 20,000 0 to 10,000
20,001 to 40,000 10,001 10 20,000
40,001 to 60,000 20,001 to 30,000
60,001 to 80,000 30,0011 10 40,000
Qver 80,000 Cwver 40,000

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank)
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There are certain advantages and disadvantages in converting the base facility charge from non-ad valorem charge
to a meter based or equivalent charge. These advantages and disadvantages is summarized below for the Board’s
consideration:

Advantages Comparison for Change in Base Facility Cost Recovery Methodology

Advantages fo Non-ad Valorem Assessment

Advantage to Meter Based Rate

Charge has same payment status as Property Taxes so
Collection Rate is High — Promotes Revenue Stability and
Predictability

Reduced bad debt write-offs due to high probability of
collection when compared to Meter Based Rate

Common Utility Rate Structure and Consistent with FPSC
and Collier County rate making criteria; consistent with
County Retail rate structure (favorable from a County
Utility acquisition standpoint if considered in future by
parties}

Utility bill fully tied to service — better link of full service to
customer requiring service

application; eliminates any seasonality issues since full
base charge recovered regardless of occupancy of
property

+ Current Rate application, limited disruption to customers + Canimplement a change in rates or a water restriction
surcharge (if SFWMD imposes restrictions on water
withdrawals) at any time; assessment rates cannot be
changed except once per year

» Data to support conversion may not be fully reliable due to
System Manager transition; may be best io maintain status
que to accumulate more data to evaluate impacts to
customers in future

+ [ncreased financial risk due fo unknown changes in water
use by customers once bills fully consolidated

Conclusions and Recommendations

Based upon the principal considerations and assumptions and the results of our analysis as summarized in this
report, which should be read in its entirety, and in conjunction with the following, we are of the opinion that:

1. The current existing rates for the water and wastewater system are projected to not be sufficient to meet
the identified net revenue requirements (System expenditures and funding requirements) during the
Forecast Period ending with the Fiscal Year 2028. Based on the Financial Forecast results, the current
observations are that a recommendation to the District Board to adopt a four- (4) year additional price
index and fixed rate implementation or phasing plan be adopted. The increase in rates above what is
currently in effect are considered necessary to:

a. Recover increased Operating Expenses associated with the impacts of high inflation and
increased construction costs (both from a repair and maintenance perspective and capital
construction perspective), which has been significantly higher than the levels assumed in the
development of prior capital master plans, budget plans, and rates;

b. Provide dedicated annual transfers to fund capital expenditures for the renewal, replacement,
betterment, and upgrade of System assets to imit the amount of debt financing and long-term
costs to the System, which will promote ongoing rate stability;
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¢. Provide sufficient funds necessary to issue new debt for the System and to meet anticipated rate
covenant requirements associated with loans secured to finance certain capital improvements
to the System;

d. Maintain targeted unrestricted operating / capital cash (fund balance) reserves within the
System to limit the risk to the utility due to unforeseen changes in revenues, the incurrence of
unexpected operating or capital expenditures, and to promote the financial stability of the
System; and

e. Attempt to promote the overall creditworthiness of the System and maintain a stable credit
rating, which is necessary to obtain financing at the lowest possible cost and is a measure of
rate sustainability.

2. Adopt the meter-based rates as delineated in this report if the District Board wants to consolidate rates
charged to the ultimate customer and have a rate structure consistent with Collier County and as
advocated by the FPSC.

{Remainder of page intentionally left blank)
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Neil Dorrill

From: Kevin Carter

Sent: Friday, March 7, 2025 1:04 PM
To: Neil Dorrill

Subject: FW: 149 Venus Cau

As FY|

Below is correspondence between Jack McKenna, Jared Brown and the builder with regard to the swale issue at
149 Venus Cay.
Jack wants the CID to develop “building guidelines”

Thanks

Kevin

From: Jared R. Brown <jrb@johnsoneng.com>
Sent: Friday, March 7, 2025 10:56 AM

To: Kevin Carter <Kevin@dmgfl.com>
Subject: Fwd: 149 Venus Cau

Here is an fyi.
I’'m out till week after next

Begin forwarded message:

From: Jack McKenna <jack.mckenna@colliercountyfl.gov>

Date: March 7, 2025 at 10:38:48 AM EST

To: Joseph Levy <joenaplesl@icloud.com>

Cc: "Jared R. Brown" <jrb@johnsoneng.com>, Anna-Lise Hansen <ahansen@poicid.com>,
MummeChristian <Christian.Mumme @colliercountyfl.gov>

Subject: RE: 149 Venus Cau

While 2 Inches seems minimalistic, | think that should work. | understand the frustration (as we all have
spent an unrealistic amount of time on this house. When we had first met out there | had expressed
concern of the transition slopes to form the swale. Unfortunately, with the current building elevations
(as | know you are painfully aware) transitions to the swale grades are very difficult. By copy of this | am
going to suggest the CID consider developing some building guidelines as it is difficult with the larger
houses and pool deck elevated beyond what could have ever been considered in the original design.



Jack McKenna P.E.
Manager - Engineering
Development Review

Office:239-252-2911 Co]lier C

Jack.McKenna@ecolliercountyfl.gov

From: Joseph Levy <joenaplesl@icloud.com>

Sent: Friday, March 07, 2025 8:20 AM

To: Jack McKenna <Jack.McKenna@colliercountyfl.gov>
Subject: Re: 145 Venus Cau

EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email is from an external source. Confirm this is a trusted sender
and use extreme caution when opening attachments or clicking links.

Jack,

We graded following the directions provided by you and Christian, and
already the neighbor is complaining and sending you defamatory emails
about me and the homeowner. Since the start of construction, she has
continuously harassed us, despite our repeated efforts to accommodate her
concerns.

When I met with the new homeowner, they were thrilled about building their
dream home. Unfortunately, because of the neighbor’s actions, that
excitement has been completely overshadowed. The homeowner’s wife even
expressed that she will be moving in with a heavy heart. It’s deeply
concerning that the neighbor’s behavior appears to be driven by
discriminatory and racist feelings toward the new homeowner.

We are also being forced to follow her grade elevation, even though it does
not conform to the natural contours of her lot. Her property is higher in the
center and lower at the corners, causing water to drain onto neighboring lots.
As a result, we are required to maintain an unmanageable swale. If I’'m not
mistaken, the swale (or drainage ditch) should fall within the CID easement,
but because that easement is largely nonexistent on this lot, the homeowner is

2



now being forced to install the swale on their own property—causing them to
lose a significant portion of their yard space.

Between the two properties, the homeowner installed a hedge.

Following Christian’sinstructions, we left a 2-inch deep drainage ditch
beyond the hedge, on our side of the lot allowing rainwater to flow to the rear
of the property and into the main swale.

Please let me know how you’d like to proceed from here. I’'m happy to
discuss any next steps or provide further clarification if needed.

Best Regards

Joe
239-331-9737

On Mar 6, 2025, at 4:50 PM, Jack McKenna <Jack.McKenna@colliercountyfl.gov> wrote:

Neighbor sent photos | thought | forwarded
Jack

Jack McKenna P.E.
Manager - Engineering
Development Review

Office:239-252-2911<tel:239-252-2911>

Jack.McKenna@colliercountyfl.gov<mailto:Jack.McKenna@colliercountyfl.gov>

<https://www.colliercountyfl.gov/>[cid:CountyLogo-FullColor_948165c4-9665-41b4-
9162-fbb16abff557.pngl<https://www.colliercountyfl.gov/>

<https://www.facebook.com/CollierGov>[cid:Facebook_0522f546-5e75-4698-95f9-
f15590a3defe.png]<https://www.facebook.com/CollierGov> [cid:Instagram_a8da4774-
4b5h-4ad1-8d23-20e69b3b605d.png] <https://www.instagram.com/colliercountyfl>
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<https://www.instagram.com/colliercountyfl> [cid:X-Twitter_8d678efc-bd14-44ce-
97cf-7fbab1003b00.png] <https://twitter.com/CollierGov>
<https://twitter.com/CollierGov>

<https://twitter.com/CollierGov> [cid:Youtube_0078f7f1-7789-4afd-a015-
50689fe1f99b.png] <https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC8SiMQsoy184ZEmFc-
PWIlpw> <https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC8SiMQsoy184ZEmFc-

PWIpw> [cid:311lconforSignature_655c7bbh5-b2bb-49a0-9737-5ae8a4da3bab.png]
<https://colliercountyfl.qscend.com/311/>

On Mar 6, 2025, at 4:36 PM, Joseph Levy <joenaplesl @icloud.com> wrote:

EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email is from an external source. Confirm this is a trusted sender
and use extreme caution when opening attachments or clicking links.

| didn’t send any pictures today. They are still working on it. Should be done by
tomorrow. Thanks

Best Regards

Joe
239-331-9737

On Mar 6, 2025, at 3:31 PM, Jack McKenna <Jack.McKenna@colliercountyfl.gov> wrote:

Hi Joe,

Pictures are not clear please make sure there is a swale

Jack McKenna P.E.
Manager - Engineering
Development Review

Office:239-252-2911<tel:239-252-2911>

Jack.McKenna@colliercountyfl.gov<mailto:Jack.McKenna@colliercountyfl.gov>

<https://www.colliercountyfl.gov/><https://www.colliercountyfl.gov/>

<CountyLogo-FullColor_948165c4-9665-41b4-9162-
fbb16abff557.png><https://www.colliercountyfl.gov/>




<https://www.facebook.com/CollierGov><https://www.facebook.com/CollierGov>
<Facebook_0522f546-5e75-4698-95f9-f15590a3defe.png>
<https://www.instagram.com/colliercountyfl>
<Instagram_a8da4774-4b5b-4ad1-8d23-20e69b3b605d.png>
<https://www.instagram.com/colliercountyfl> <https://twitter.com/CollierGov>
<X-Twitter_8d678efc-bd14-44ce-97cf-7fbab1003b00.png>
<https://twitter.com/CollierGov><https://twitter.com/CollierGov>
<https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC8SiMQsoy184ZEmFc-PWIpw>
<Youtube_0078f7f1-7789-4afd-a015-50689fe1f99b.png>
<https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC85iMQsoy184ZEmFc-PWipw>
<https://colliercountyfl.qscend.com/311/>
<311lconforSignature_655c7bb5-b2bb-49a0-9737-5ae8ad4da3bab.png>

From: Lynne Leipold <leipold2017 @yahoo.com>

Sent: Thursday, March 06, 2025 2:49 PM

To: Jack McKenna <Jack.McKenna@colliercountyfl.gov>
Subject: 149 Venus Cau

EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email is from an external source. Confirm this is a trusted sender
and use extreme caution when opening attachments or clicking links.

Jack,

| hate to bother you but apparently Joe Levy and home owner did not follow your
direction after Monday 3/3/25 county site visit, see attached pictures.

The last attached picture by pool/water shows landscape materials, planted along
property line and sod installed with no berm or swale. You can see the orange string

indicating property line, there is no room for a swale or berm.

Equipment pad side and driveway side shows landscape materials planted and no swale
or berm constructed. Sod is soon to be planted today.

When we talked Monday you said a Berm or swale would need to be constructed to
contain water onto their property and not flood ours..did this change or did Joe/home

owner do whatever they wanted?

TY

<IMG_0609.jpg>

<IMG_0614.jpg>

<IMG_0616.jpg>

Lynne Leipold



Neil Dorrill

_
From: Kevin Carter
Sent: Wednesday, March 5, 2025 12:40 PM
To: Neil Dorrill
Subject: FW: Venus Cay

FYl: for swale questions regarding 140 Venus Cay. Jared and | met there and reviewed yesterday.
This is not passing inspection from County due to not following SFWMD permit conditions.

Thanks

Kevin

From: Jared R. Brown <jrb@johnsoneng.com>
Sent: Wednesday, March 5, 2025 9:46 AM

To: Kevin Carter <Kevin@dmgfl.com>
Subject: Venus Cay

Kevin,

Since I’'m out for the next two weeks+ | wanted to follow up on this before | go.

From our 3/4/25 field visit | became aware of the fact that a majority of the platted CID drainage
easement is not able to be used as the SFWMD permitintends. The easement is supposed to start atthe
toe of the rip-rap and accommodate a swale to move stormwater from all the other upstream lots down
to the control structure, as in section G below. The actual field conditions look to have much of that 20’
in the water or as part of the rip rap slope. | do not have survey to confirm this but visually this is how it
appears. We can’tfillin the canal to add more tand to make a swale so a reasonable alternative appears
to be to replace the conveyance function of the swale with a 15” pipe, perforated to allow water to
percolate into the soil.

The downside is that this could create the perception that this homeowner is “getting away with
something” by providing a pipe instead of a swale. The reality is that the land that was platted to
accommodate this swale doesn’t exist. | do not know if it was eroded over the years orif there was an
error in the initial plat/plans.

| believe this is the last unoccupied lot on a cul-de-sac, so this should not be a recuring problem.
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+6.4 FT. N,G.V.D,
(MINIMUM PERIMETER SITE GRADE)

500—10004 NATIVE STOM
THICK OVER FILTER CLOT

FILTER CLOTH

SECTION G—G

TOE OF STONE LANDWARD
OF APPX. MHW
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Port of the Islands Account Type All 03/11/2025 08:20
A t Al

Past Due Customers ccaunt Category Al Page 10f 2
Route: All
Past Due Days 60
Status Active

Exclude Payment Plans False

Service Aged PastDue Total Deposit Last Pymt. Last Pymt. Meter Pay
Route Sort Account# Customer Name Status Parcel#  Address Days Amt. Balance Balance Date Amount Meter # Type Plan
0 0 90834 PORT OF THEISLANDS  Active 30693 CONDO 70 83351  2137.48 000 11/25/2024 755.48 26189319 RG No
RESORT CONDO
0 0 10108 BRAZZEL, LINDA Active 30712 285 SUNRISE CAY &2 11163 120.22 000 22986936 RG No
K100 0 91090 WELCOME, RICHARD  Active 30587 326 STELLA 70 3402 213.55 000 01/23/2025 120.00 22986535 RG No
MARISDRS
K200 0 10084 CARDENASARAUJO,  Active 30355 365 STELLA 70 77.27 188.12 000 11/22/2024 188,12 22986576 RG No
YELY MARIS DR N APT
2905
K200 0 10094 A GOLDMAN, MICHAEL Active 30013 385 STELLA 70 859 42.18 000 11/15/2024 10.00 22986613 RG No
MARIS DR N APT
2706
K200 0 91001 OLSON,JEFFEREYAND  Active 30523 253 SUNRISE CAY 70 34,34 110.85 000  05/28/2024 583.80 22986670 RG Mo
KATH| APT 203
K200 0 90001 ABRAMOFF,EUGENE  Active 30000 221 SUNRISE CAY 131 119.44 170.20 5000 09/10/2024 27321 22986691 RG No
APT 104
K200 0 10072 KNAPP, SCOTT Active 30040 221 SUNRISE CAY 333 238.79 272.38 0.00 22986692 RG No
APT 204
K300 0 90561 SUNSETCAYVILLAS#4  Active 30307 182 NEWPORT 70 3028 - 99.22 5000 03/19/2024 20.28 22986201 RG No
DR
K300 0 90563 SUNSET CAY VILLAS#7  Active  3030% 154 NEWPORT 315 3642 68.18 5000 11/29/2023 3.38 22986295 RG No
DR
K300 G 90565 SUNSETCAYVILLASI!  Active 30311 194 NEWPORT 70 743 7259 5000 03/19/2024 23.66 22986187 RG No
DR DOCK
K300 0 90756 BRINKWORTH, Active 30377 254 NEWPORT 70 859 102.27 000 11/18/2024 129.54 22986223 RG No
JENNIFER DRAPT 405
K300 0 91132 EVANS, WILLIAM Active 30618 242 NEWPORT 70 859 50.76 000  12/02/2024 142.95 22986210 RG No
DR APT 510
K400 0 91117-1063 AGTINVESTMENTSFL  Active 30678 FRONT OF SALES 70 290 2,90 000 12/11/2024 33.70 21B6B023 IR No
LLC OFFICE
K400 0 20046 BENEDICT, RICK Active 30020 314 NEWPORT 70 5151 136.61 5000  11/14/2024 7651 22986783 RG No
DR APT 1604
K400 0 90261 HEIDELBERG, CHARLES Active 30137 25046 PEACOCK 70 859 3359 5000  05/14/2024 17.17 22986745 RG No
LN APT 102
K400 0 90307 KENNEY, ROSE Active 30158 25073 PEACOCK 105 5076 118.69 5000 12/19/2024 230.30 22986799 RG No
LNAPT 102
K400 0 90281 HUNT, JEAN Active 30146 25081 PEACOCK 167 076 0.76 5000  11/20/2024 2500 22986809 RG Ne
LN APT 101
K400 0 90329 KRONSTEDT, KEITH Active 30175 25069 PEACOCK 193 58,59 92.18 5000 07/29/2024 111,64 22986797 RG No
LN APT 202
K400 0 90885 MURPHY, WILLIAM Active 30443 25061 PEACOCK 256 246,71 314.64 000  06/03/2024 47144 22986793 RG No
LN APT 101
K400 0 90948 MAYNARD, OWEN Active 30491 302 NEWPORT 256 255.23 348.91 000  06/19/2024 42000 22986261 RG No
_ DR APT 1510
K400 0 90772 CHUPURDY, LISA Active 30383 25072 PEACOCK 315 194.45 253.79 000  03/15/2024 5151 22986849 RG Ne

LN APT 101



Port of the Islands Account Type All 03/11/202508:20
Account Category All
Past Due Customers ) Page 2 of 2
Route: All
Past Due Days 60
Status Active
Exclude Payment Plans False
Service Aged Past Due Total Deposit Last Pymt. Last Pymt. Meter Pay
Route Sort Account# Customer Name Status Parcel#  Address Days Amt. Balance Balance Date Amount Meter# Type Plan
K400 0 90795 GANDEE, DEANNA Active 30393 25061 PEACOCK 748 176626 179126 000 22986796 RG No
LN APT 102
UNK 0 21093-350 SUNSET CAY LAKES Active 30673 350 NEWPORT 315 38.24 6662 .00  11/20/2023 3.38 22984858 RG No
1900 CONDOMINIUM DRIVE
ASSOCIATION INC
"UNK 0 90376 MCQUEEN, BOB Active 30199 150 WINDWARD 70 0.60 311.52 5000 01/21/2025 24500 22986463 IR No
CAY
UNK 0 90508 $EABURG, DAVID Active 30272 106 MORNING 70 133.16 34306 50,00 11/06/2024 478,02 22986374 IR No
STAR CAY
UNK 0 10097 RISTANIKRELANDO  Active 30506 175 SUNSET CAY 131 114.27 257.81 000 10/02/2024 10.00 22986422 RG Mo
Total Count: 27 4,470.93 7,720.94
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Phone: 239-592-9115




Current Assets
Checking
Checking - Water/Sewer
Undeposited Cash (WS)
Accounts Receivable
Due To/From 001/202
Due To/From 001/202
Prepaid Items

Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment

Land

Irrigation

Equipment

Improvements - W/WS

Construction in Progress

Less Accumulated Depreciation

Net Property and Equipment

Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Utility Customer Deposits
Total Current Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities
Total Long-Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Fund Balances
Unreserved Fund Balance
Retained Earnings

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Unaudited

Port of the Islands CID
Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2025

Assets
Operating Water and Sewer Total
% 3,951,308.72 $ 0.00 L 3,951,308.72 -
0.00 1,353,427.50 1,353,427.50~
0.00 28,794.82 28,794.82
0.00 (12,647.10) (12,647.10)
0.00 289,610.05 289,610.05
(289,610.05) 0.00 (289,610.05)
25,197.50 25,197.50 50,395.00
3,686,896.17 1,684,382.77 5,371,278.94
583,847.00 599,674.85 1,183,521.85
0.00 7,970,676.65 7,970,676.65
0.00 287,662.07 287,662.07
0.00 7,727,885.60 7,727,885.60
0.00 66,875.00 66,875.00
0.00 (9,394,648.74) (9,3594,648.74)
583,847.00 7,258,125.43 7,841,972.43
$ 4,270,743.17 $ 8,842,508.20 $ 13,213,251.37
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Operating Water and Sewer Total
$ 77,721.89 $ 000 $ 77,721.89
0.00 16,600.00 16,600.00
77,721.89 16,600.00 94,321.89
0.00 0.00 0.00
77,721.85 16,600.00 94,321.89
3,671,829.35 8,425,409.10 12,097,238.45
£21,191.93 500,499.10 1,021,691.03
4,193,021.28 8,925,908.20 13,118,529.48
$ 4,270,743.17 $ 8,942,508.20 $ 13,213,251.37
r




r
ST8'PET ZEE'9S SLT'sy 209'v0T 0L0°2T 65b'9Z
ST (83} 8s 0 ST 0
009°€ (1£85) 002'T 628 00€ 879
000"/ 6/£°0T £ELE7 FAVAr4 €85 895
000‘ A 000'z #ZS°0T 005 8se't
000'S {(€9/) £99°1 $06 [Th 141
002 {£9) 9 0 L1 0
0 000z 0 0002 0 0
000°CT 0r0’7 000't 0b0o’'s 000'T 0zsT
005 061 91 £5€ g 081
00 591 ££2 86€ 85 01e
00s'c (co1'T) £9T'1 0 762 ]
00£'2 £98'T 006 £94'2 sz 0
00S9% fa 00S’ST 205°sT 5/8'€ L48°E
000'se (Zp1) ££E°8 9818 £80°C £5T°E
000'se FA 2] ££E' 080°/T £80C 09€’eT
] 080'9¢ 0 080'9Z 0 0
005 (c6) /91 74 F 2 0
oSk £ 0sT £5T 8¢ 8t
000’9 0 000’2 0007 00s 00S
559’86 Tot’'6SE S88°/Z€ 9e’'£89 TL6'TS orL'Th
(o00'st) 000'ST (oo0’sT) 0 {052) 0
00€ ¥Sp 00T $55 ord 55
SGE'8/8 16L'ThE g8/'z67 785'5£9 961°EL 68E'8¢
000°0ST $ 017’1 $ 000°0S $ 012’15 $ 00s'eT $ /62°ET
1206png |enuuy aoueLep jobpng {ENDY 1°hpng jenypy
ali aii pouad Juaiingd pollad juaiin)
SZ07 ‘TE Aenuer

Buipuz poiiad ay3 104
FONVYNILNIVI 8 SNOLLYHIJO - sesuadx3 3 SonuaAay Jo jJuswalels
aId spue[sI 3y} Jo Hod

psipneun

SARENSIMHUPY [€301
824 Guli4 1M3s1g |enuuy
8)Isgep HISIa-Osin
1500 UONIS|0D) JUSWISSISSY-ISHM
sa0IAlRS |eads
Buispeapy (eba
Buipuig g Bunuld
uonesuaduiod s3I0/ - SRIBINSUL
AY[Iqer] jeeuss - 9uBInsSUT
Wby puy sbeysod
$95E97 1 Sjejudy
SIDIAIDS burpny
losieaddy Ayladord-alasiold
MBS Bupinsuo) WBW-AIRSI0Id
S30IMB5 [e637-ALSS30.d
Bupeaubugz-Aas)old
xef Aadold Aunod
sand BUISS2I0UY - ¥/d
saxe] JuswAodwg
siosianedng JO pleog-d/d

SANBISIUITPY

So5UA0R

onuaAsY (2101

SIUNOOSIQ-SIULISSY |eads
Jopo||on xey - 3sa.423ur
10103107 Xl -Sjutussy |epads
BLLIODUT 35aIBIUT

BNUBADY

P [R15USD



z pajipneun

000'ST 000°S- 000°s 0S2'T lojuo) ojinbsoly |e30)
ooo’ot (ecc’e) £E£€'E a ££8 0 Aeids oynbsop-spenuoy
000's (£99'T) 99T 0 Fas 0 Juauneat) 03Inbsop-spenue)

OIUGT) OYNDS0

00£'0T £Eb'E- £Eb'E 858 s)|emapls @ Speoy |ejol
00007 (ee£’e) £ee’s 0 ££8 0 shemAally g Specy-Wgy
0o€ (oom) 00T 0 (4 ] abeubis-iWey

SSemspIS % Speay

000 ZTT- £99 565 £9T spuod ® saxe |[ejol
0002 {z11) £99 S5S £91 0 saHeT-sIRquU)

Spuod g So9eq

000°6TT 652'T 999°65 ST6'0Y 9166 9S0’ET uonjebLu g edeospue jejoL
00001 £79 ceg's 096’ ££8 T8¢ LoneSIuT- gy
000'ST 918 000's 918'S 0se'T 8L uoneBLu-ANnn
000'v6 {(pa1) €278 6FT'TE £E8'2 88s's adedspue-spriuod

0000/ 99z'e- peE'sT 890°0Z +E8'S 8/7'8 asueudjulely ] SuoiiesadQ {2301
000°s {£99'1) £99'1 0 LT 0 abeulelq Ja1em WHoIS-IWSY
000’se {992'7) £5es £90'g £80°7 Irb'S SPUNOID-WZY
0a0's (799'T) £99°1 0 LTH 0 Juatuaoeday B [emausy-lgy
000°0g +32'1 00001 ¥8T'TT 0057 TERT Bunubinesns-Apmos|g
000°s 0S0°1 £99°1 L1l'e {Th 0 SR2IAIRS PrRIJ-S1oERUC)

J1efipng jenuuy oueLIEA Jebpng |enypy Jobpng |enioy
ali alAa [ ENENVET T e) poiiag juating

SZ0T ‘TE AMenuer

pund [eisuss

Buipu3 potiad ay 104
FINVNILNIVIN 2 SNOLLYYIJO - Sesuadxy 13 sonuaaay Jo jJuawalels
aID Spue|s Y3 3o Hod



peypneun)

0 $ I6T'TCS $0 $ 167125 $ (D) $ {(€50'9) $ sasuadxgy sapun (12A0) 2NUDASY
5350 19410
TISINOS B0
(s9s0}) S824n0g BupueUL B0
TIINOS TS0
(sas}) seaunos BupUeUY 1BUI0
|[sso’eg6 [(og£’197) |ssg’zze |sst'99T | €618 | e6£'21 sainyipuadxy |eyol |
DES'ZTO 015'£02- 015°£0T 8/8°TS sp8loid g saanjipuadxy jepde) |e3o)
015’68 (0£1'1€1) 04T°TET 0 £6/'2F 0 anesay [epde)
0z0'6eT (£00'cy) L00°Eh 0 75401 0 Ausbunue)
000°00T (geg’ce) ££Eee 0 £ee's 0 adesspuet - Aepng (euded
3obpnyg jenuuy CRIF:INL-T Y johbpng 1enjoy jabpng jenpy
alA aLA poUad Jualind porad jua4in)
punyjeiauan
§Z07 ‘1€ Asenuer
Buipu3 poriad ay3 104

FONVNILNIVI 8 SNOILVYIO - s9suadx3 13 sanuaaay Jo jJuswidlels

aId SpUe|SsT dY1 Jo Jod



b4
00L'LYT SLIPE E£EC'6Y 801'€8 80ETT +90°SE
000'% (€5 £EL'T 0921 £EE 9Tg
00/ 52 X4 bLT B8S 801
000'szZ 854'9 ££C'8 160°ST £80°C v/9
0 9¢/ 0 9c/ 0 74
0 0S£'2 0 052't 0 0
002’1 (oow) 00f 0 00T 0
00¢ (£9) £9 0 FA 0
000°ZT 0+0'1 000’ ob0's 000'7 0Es'e
ooz (£9) 9 0 L1 0
000’ (e£€£7) X 0 £EE 0
000°Z 9607 £99 £9/C 29T 0
005'9r L 005'ST £05°ST S/8'E LI8'E
000'sZ (zbT) ££E'8 9818 £80°C £6T°E
000°0Z £06"TT £99'9 vL5'6T £99'7 0og'cl
00s (€6) 291 24 o 0
00b 0¢ £eT £ST €€ 8¢
000’9 0 000'e 0002 00s 005
8790 T TP 60280 £59'T68 ZS0'LTT 68T b
000's 8E1’S £99'T 5089 [T SER'p
(014'10) 0/0°6€ (E06'ET) £91'ST {9s¢'c) 0
009 85t 00z 859 0s 859
BEL'THO'T 98/'16€ 6/5'/¥E S9L'6EL S68'98 20/°cE
000° 0’1 000°T 0zb'T oSz 0
000'SST §99°1 £99'15 zee'es L16'TT 0
000’001 (8v+'1) EEC'EE S88'1E £E€'8 55C
000’001 (96£°6) EEE'EC LESET ££€'8 991
000°0% $ 1SS $ eeeeT $ b8P8T $ E€£°€ $ £/5'%
1ab6png [enuuy [ouBLIRA 1afipng [enly Pphpng [enyy
ali alA poliad jua.ling poLiad jua.liny
§Z0T ‘1€ AMenuer

buipu3 poliad 2y} 104

sosuadxg 1@ SONUIADY JO JUBWILLLS

dId spuejsI 943 J0 Hod

paypneun

BARESIUIUPY [EJ0L
suonesado Ain - avoudspL

seyddng 22110

15070 UORIDYI0D) JULUSSDSSY-DSI
sal|ddns g abejsod Bulllig AN

sa01M35 |BPads

Buisiuoapy |2ba

Buiputg *g Gunuug

Aupgen |edsusg - souRINSUT
Jybia.4 puy abeisod

SIS Bunipny

tasieaddy Anladold-alesiold
AlRS Bumnsuo) JWB-A18S)01d
Sa0IAIDS |eBaT-AISS)0ld
BupesuBul-Alasi0.d

s394 Buisssood - ¥/d

saxe) jualuAoiduwg

slosidadns Jo pieog-d/d
SAffEIISIUMIPY

SHRUIUXT

SNUIADY [e]0)

SaNnUBADY SNOBURNBISIK JAUI0
SIUNOSIA-SIUWISSY |enads
10103)(07) XB] - I5248ju]
J0138|j07) X1 -SWILUSSY [elads

5094 J318k
s994 uonebLu
aNUaATY lamas
ANURASY I31EM
WodoU] Is84U

anuaaay

JOMBS /I9TEM



z paypneun
0 $ 96+'00S $0 $ 964’005 $0 $ (sze'sE) § sasuadxg 1apuf (19A0) aNUSASY
[8z9'vOb'T [(zso’zs) |60z'g0t l£sT'T6E [zso'zTT | ¥15°e8 saanypuedxd jejoL |
8T6'SEE £T8'1¢- 9L6'TTT £9T°06 t66°LT spaloid 1B sainypuadxg jeude) 2oL
826°S8 (ev9’8T) £+9'8¢7 0 19T/ 0 AsusburgueD
0 6/8°99 0 S/8'99 0 0 dLmMM-Aeang jeyded
0 £88°FT 0 £88°ET 0 0 Wswede|dsy Jaje Aln-Aeing endes
000°052 (zg6’sl) £EL'e8 10¢'6 ££8°0T 0 Aeing jenden

5aT01d | SedmypUaaxa [eIes
000°126 vIb'68- 000°20€ 985'/1¢ 0S£'9L 0st'85 SBIIAIAS (UIOD 1DMIG-IDIAM [e]0)
000°0F2 (000°08) ooo'os 0 000'0¢2 0 WNSAS JIMBS g I3IBM, - SOAISSY
0000t (z95) /999 00£’9 £99'1 0 Jesodsiqg 26pnis
000'sz (¥g2’s) ££E°8 660'C £80°¢ Pl SUOREJadQ JR1EMIISEM-SIRIILLBYD
006'sg (858'27) 19911 608’8 L16'C £L8'Ss suonessdp JeM-S|EIILUALYD
00007 (oo1'1) £99'9 £95°s £99'T 76E'T Buydwes soueldwo)
000'1 £98'% ££E 00Z’s £8 0 SHWISd 1§ SISURT-OSIW
000°'s 78¢ £99°1 60T LTb 0sT UONRIUBLNASUT-IWEY
000°S (99'1) £99°1 0 AR 0 SILY] IoMBS-WRY
000°s2 (5z9'c) £ee'y 8592 £80°2 8697 1ueld J91BM 1SEM-IWRY
000°0F 76’8 £ee'el ser'ze £eg’e 8662 ed Ja1em-lgy
000°TT (szz'n) 000y L't 0001 115 S2U J21BM 2(q=30d-1P8Y
000°0T {eee's) gee’e 0 £c8 0 UoREIS Y-y
000'E £/8'1 000°T £/8'7 0s¢ 0 JUIBL J0JRIBURD-SIDRNIU0D
00o0's 170°0T 000t TT0'TT 052 689°¢ Bunng Aymn-sicenuc)
000°/LE (g58'8) 199'SET PIELTT FAL R 62£°6T suonesadQ ANRN-S12BHUCD
000°00T (pzs’s) £ee'ee 608'/7 £ee'y aT+'a Apup2g - Ann

3ob6png [enuuy adueLIep Jabpng lenyxy 3obpng enpy
aLA aLi poltag Juaian) poudd jualing
19MBS /1338
5707 ‘1€ AMenuer

buipu3 poriad ay3 104
mwmcwn_vnm R} SINUIAIY JO JUSLUI)ELS
aId spue|st a2y3 Jo 1od






DRAFT

PORT OF THE ISLANDS
COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
COLLIER COUNTY, FLORIDA
FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024



PORT OF THE ISLANDS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

COLLIER COUNTY, FLORIDA

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances —
Governmental Funds
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position —
Proprietary Fund
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual — General Fund
Notes to Required Supplementary Information

OTHER INFORMATION
Data Elements required by FL Statute 218.39 (3) (c)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT

AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS
OF SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES, REQUIRED BY RULE 10.556(10)

OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT LETTER PURSUANT TO THE RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

Page
1-2

10
11

12
13

14
16
16-22

23

24

25

26-27

28

29-30



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Supervisors
Port of the Islands Community Improvement District
Collier County, Florida

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, and each major fund of Port of the Islands Community Improvement District, Collier County,
Florida ("District”) as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial pesition of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each majer
fund of the District as of September 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The District's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance aof internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as
a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulling from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.
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In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements,

o Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inguiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information Included in the Financial Report

Management is responsible for the other information included in the financial report. The other information
comprises the information for compliance with FL Statute 218.39 (3) (c), but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the financial statements do not cover the
other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. In connection with
our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and consider
whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the financial statements, or the
other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we
conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to
describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated Xxxx, 2025, on
our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Xxxx, 2025
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MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of Port of the Islands Community Improvement District, Collier County,
Florida (*District”) provides a narrative overview of the District's financial activities for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2024. Please read it in conjunction with the District's Independent Auditor's
Report, basic financial statements, accompanying notes and supplementary information to the basic
financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» The assets of the District exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year
resulting in a net position balance of $12,682,723.

» The change in the District's total net position in comparison with the prior fiscal year was
$173,621, an increase. The key components of the District's net position and change in net
position are reflected in the table in the government-wide financial analysis section.

e At September 30, 2024, the District's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $3,087,983, a decrease of ($352,051} in comparison with the prior fiscal year. The
total fund balance is unassigned fund balance which is available for spending at the District's
discretion.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as the introduction to the District’s basic financial
statements. The District's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The basic financial stalements are designed fo provide readers with a broad overview of the District's
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all the District's assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources with the residual amount being reported as net
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reperied as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods.

The government-wide financial statements include all governmenial activities that are principally
supported by special assessments, The governmental activities of the District include the general
government (management), and maintenance and operations functions.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of
the funds of the District can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.
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OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflow of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a District's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the District's near-term financing decisions.
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The District maintains one governmental fund for external reporting. Information is presented separately
in the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances for the general fund, which is considered a major fund.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison
schedule has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with the budget.

Proprietary Fund

The District maintains one type of proprietary fund, an enterprise fund. An enterprise fund is used to
report the same function presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The District uses an enterprise fund to account for the operations of the water and sewer
utility facilities within the District.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of an entity’s financial position. In
the case of the District, assets exceeded liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Key compenents of the District's net position are reflected in the following table:

NET POSITICN
SEFTEMBER 30,
Governmental Activities Business-type Aclivities Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Current Assets $ 3422908 § 35531870 $ 1288625 $ 996573 $ 4,712,533 § 4,528443
Noncurrent Assets 1,169,329 606,201 7,258,127 7,499,341 8,427,456 8,105,542
Total assets 4,592,237 4,138,071 8,547,752 8,495,914 13,139,989 12,633,985
Current liabilities 334,925 91,836 122,341 33,047 457,266 124,883
Total liabilities 334,925 91,836 122,341 33,047 457,266 124,883
Net Position
Net investment in capital asset: 1,169,329 606,201 7,191,677 7,499,341 8,361,006 8,105,542
Unrestricted 3,087,983 3,440,034 1,233,734 963,526 4,321,717 4,403,560
Total net position $ 4257312 & 4046235 § 8425411 § 8,462,867 § 12,682,723 $ 12,509,102

The District's net position reflects its investment in capitat assets (e.g. land, land improvements, and
infrastructure) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. These assets
are used to provide services o residents; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending.

The District's net position increased during the most recent fiscal year. The majority of the increase
represents the extent to which ongoing program revenues exceeded the cost of operations and
depreciation expense.

Key elements of the change in net position are reflected in the following table:

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30,

Governmental Activities Business-type Aclivities Total
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 437,120 $ 343974 § 1,383,181 $ 1418541 $ 1,820,301 § 1,762,515
General revenues
Unrestricted investment earnin 184,947 165,688 49,721 23,842 234,668 189,530
Miscellanecus 91,740 11,269 87,742 190 179,482 11,459
Total revenues 713,807 520,931 1,520,644 1,442 573 2,234,451 1,963,604
Expenses:
General government 162,196 139,222 - - 162,196 139,222
Maintenance and operations 340,534 247,655 - - 340,534 247,655
Interest and other charges - 4,297 - - - 4297
Water and sew er - - 1,558,100 1,466,350 1,558,100 1,466,350
Total expenses 502,730 391,174 1,558,100 1,466,350 2,060,830 1,857 524
Change in net position 211,077 129,757 (37.456) (23,777) 173,621 105,980
Net position - beginning 4,046,235 3,016,478 8,462 867 8,486,644 12,509,102 12,403,122
Net position - ending $ 4257312 $ 4046235 § 8425411 § 8462867 $ 12682723 § 12,608,102
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Governmental activities

As noted above and in the statement of activities, the cost of all governmental activities during the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2024 was $502,730. The costs of the District’s activities were funded by
program revenues and general revenues. Program revenues are comprised of assessments. General
revenues include investment earnings and miscellaneous revenues. In total, expenses increased from the
prior year primarily as a result of an increase in general government and maintenance and operations
expenses.

Business-type activities

Business-type activities reflect the operations of the water and sewer facilities within the District. The cost
of operations is covered primarily by charges to customers, as well as special assessments. Water and
sewer expenses increased from the prior fiscal year due primarily due to an increase in repairs and
maintenance expenses.

GENERAL BUDGETING HIGHLIGHTS

An operating budget was adopted and maintained by the governing board for the District pursuant to the
requirements of Florida Statutes. The budget is adopted using the same basis of accounting that is used
in preparation of the fund financial statements. The legal level of budgetary control, the level at which
expenditures may not exceed budget, is in the aggregate. Any budget amendments that increase the
aggregate budgeted appropriations must be approved by the Board of Supervisors. Actual general fund
expenditures for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024 exceeded appropriations by $454,180. The
over expenditures were funded by available fund balance.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At September 30, 2024, the District had $2,388,496 invested in capital assets for its governmental
activities. In the government-wide financial statements depreciation of $1,219,167 has been taken, which
resulted in a net book value of $1,169,329. The District's business-type activities reported net capital
assets of $7,258,127. More detailed information about the District's capital assets is presented in the
notes of the financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND OTHER EVENTS

The District does not anticipate any major projects or significant changes to its infrastructure maintenance
program for the subsequent fiscal year. In addition, it is anticipated that the general operations of the
District will remain fairly constant.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with
a general overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability for the
financial resources it manages and the stewardship of the facilities it maintains. If you have questions
about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Port of the Islands Community
Improvement District’s Finance Department at 5672 Strand Court, Suite 1, Naples, Florida 34110.



PORT OF THE ISLANDS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
COLLIER COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Internal balances

Assessments receivable

Restricted assets:

Cash and investments - customer deposits
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Internal balances
Customer deposits
Total current liahilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Gowernmental Business-type

Acfivities Activities Total
$ 3,351,550 % 1,233,883 3% 4,585,433
- 28,309 28,309
66,450 - 66,450
4,908 11,233 16,141
- 16,200 16,200
3,422,908 1,289,625 4,712,533
931,283 666,550 1,597,833
238,046 8,591,577 6,829,623
1,169,329 7,258,127 8,427,456
4,692 237 8,547,752 13,139,989
334,925 39,691 374,616
- 66,450 66,450
- 16,200 16,200
334,925 122,341 457,266
1,169,329 7,191,677 8,361,006
3,087,983 1,233,734 4,321,717
3 4257312 § 8425411 $ 12,682,723

See notes to the financial statements
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PORT OF THE ISLANDS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
COLLIER COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Functions/Programs
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government
Maintenance and operations
Total governmental activities

Business-type activities;
Water and sewer
Total business-type activities

General revenues:
Unrestricted investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Total general revenues

Change in net position

Net position - beginning
Net position - ending

DRAFT

Program Net (Expense) Revenue and
Rewenues Changes in Net Position
Charges for ~ Governmental  Business-type
Expenses Senices Activities Activities Total
$§ 162198 § 162196 § - § 7 $ 7
340,534 274,924 (65,610) - (65,610)
502,730 437,120 (65,610) - (65,610)
1,558,100 1,383,181 - (174,919) (174,919)
1,558,100 1,383,181 - (174,919) (174,919)
184,947 49 721 234,668
91,740 87,742 179,482
276,687 137,463 414,150
211,077 (37,456) 173,621
4,046,235 8,462 867 12,509,102
$ 4257312 § 8425411 § 12,682,723

See notes to the financial statements



DRAFT

PORT OF THE ISLANDS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
COLLIER COUNTY, FLORIDA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Major Fund
General
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,351,550
Assessments receivable 4,908
Due from cther funds 66,450
Total assets $ 3,422,908
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 334,925
Total liabilities 334,925
Fund balances:
Unassigned 3,087,983
Total fund balances 3,087,983
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 3,422,808

See notes to the financial statements



PORT OF THE ISLANDS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
COLLIER COUNTY, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Fund balance - governmental funds $ 3,087,983

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
assets in the governmental funds. The statement of net
position includes those capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, in the net position of the government as a

whole.
Cost of capital assets 2,388,496
Accumulated depreciation (1,219,167) 1,169,329
Net position of governmental activities $ 4,257,312

See notes to the financial statements
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PORT OF THE ISLANDS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
COLLIER COUNTY, FLORIDA '
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Major Fund
General
REVENUES
Assessments $ 437,120
Miscellaneous 91,740
Interest income 184,947
Tetal revenues 713,807
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 162,196
Maintenance and operations 319,815
Capital outlay 583,847
Total expenditures 1,065,858
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
owver (under) expenditures {352,051)
Fund balances - beginning 3,440,034
Fund balances - ending $ 3,087,983

See notes to the financial statements
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PORT OF THE ISLANDS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
COLLIER COUNTY, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 5 (352,051)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Gowernmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures,
however, the cost of capital assets is eliminated in the statement of
activities and capitalized in the statement of net position. 583,847

Depreciation of capital assets is not recognized in the
governmental fund financial statements but is reported as an
expense in the statement of activities. {(20,719)

Change in net position of governmental activities 3 211,077

See notes to the financial statements



PORT OF THE ISLANDS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
COLLIER COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET PCSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,233,883
Accounts receivable 28,309
Assessments receivable 11,233
Resftricted cash:
Customer deposits 16,200
Total current assets 1,289,625

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Land and land improvements 599,675
Construction in progress 66,875
Improvements other than buildings 15,698,563
Equipment 287,662
Less accumulated depreciation (9,394 648)
Total capital assets, net of depreciation 7,258,127
Total noncurrent assets 7,258,127
Total assets 8,547,752
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrnued expenses 39,691
Due to other funds ‘ 66,450
Customer deposits - payable from restricted assets 16,200
Total current liabilities 122,341
Total liabilities 122,341
NET POSITION
Investment in capital asseis 7,258,127
Unrestricted 1,167,284
$ 8,425,411

See notes to the financial statements

DRAFT



PORT OF THE ISLANDS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

COLLIER COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN

FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for senices:
Water $
Sewer
Irrigation
Meter
Miscellaneous revenue

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
General and administrative
Plant operations
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Special assessments
Interest income
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
Change in net position

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending $

See notes to the financial statements

93,508
90,583
189,888
9,575
87,742

471,296

232,852
850,137
475,111

1,558,100

(1,086,804)

999,627
49,721

1,049,348

(37,456)

8,462,867

8,425,411
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PORT OF THE ISLANDS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

COLLIER COUNTY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Receipts from other sources
Payments to suppliers for goods and senices

454,456
87,742
(873,898)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

(331,700)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Assessments

999,627

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital capital financing activities

999,627

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets

(233,897)

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

{(233,897)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income

49,721

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

49,721

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - OCTOBER 1

483,751

766,332

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - SEPTEMBER 30

1,250,083

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME
TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Depreciation
(Increase) / decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) / decrease in prepaid expenses
(Increase) / decrease in due from other fund
(Decrease) / increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
(Decrease) / increase in due to other fund
(Decrease) / increase in customer deposits

R=7]

(1,086,804)

475,111
75,255
830
114,614
27,197
66,450
{4,353)

Tetal adjustments

755,104

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

R

(331,700)

See notes to the financial statements
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PORT OF THE ISLANDS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
COLLIER COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ORGANIZATION AND REPORTING ENTITY

Port of the Islands Community Improvement District (“the District") was created on September 16, 1986
pursuant to the Uniform Community Improvement District Act of 1980, otherwise known as Chapter 190,
Florida Statutes, by Collier County Ordinance No. 86-64. The Act provides among other things, the power
to manage basic services for community Improvement, power to borrow money and issue bonds, and to
levy and assess non-ad valorem assessments for the financing and delivery of capital infrastructure.

The District was established for the purposes of financing and managing the planning, maintenance and
operation of a water and wastewater system within the District in accordance with powers established by
Florida Statute Chapter 190.

The District is governed by the Board of Supervisors ("the District") which is composed of five members.
The Supervisors are elected on an at large basis by the owners of the property within the District. The
Board of Supervisors of the District exercise all powers granted to the District pursuant to Chapter 190,
Florida Statutes.

The District has the final responsibility for:

Assessing and levying maintenance taxes and special assessments.
Approving budgets.

Exercising control over facilities and properties.

Controlling the use of funds generated by the District.

Approving the hiring and firing of key personnel.

Financing improvements.

OAWON =

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards District
("GASB") Statements. Under the provisions of those standards, the financial reporting entity consists of
the primary government, organizations for which the Board of Supervisors is considered to be financially
accountable and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
District are such that, if excluded, the financial statements of the District would be considered incomplete
or misleading. There are no entities considered to be component units of the District; therefore, the
financial statements include only the operations of the District.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The basic financial statements include both government-wide and fund financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment; operating-
type special assessments for maintenance and debt service are treated as charges for services and 2)
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Other items not included among program revenues are reported instead
as general revenues.
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NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement

focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Assessments are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are to be
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal period. Expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures are recorded only when payment is due.

Assessments

Assessments are non-ad valorermn assessments on benefited lands within the District. Assessments are
levied to pay for the operations and maintenance of the District. The fiscal year for which annual
assessments are levied begins on October 1 with discounts available for payments through February 28
and become delinquent on April 1. The District’s annual assessments for operations and debt service are
billed and collected by the County Tax Assessor/Collector. The amounts remitied to the District are net of
applicable discounts or fees and include interest on monies held from the day of collection to the day of
distribution.

Assessments and inferest associated with the current fiscal period are considered to be susceptible to
accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. The portion of
assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to acerual as
revenue of the current period.

Assessments and interest associated with the current fiscal period are considered to be susceptible to
accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. The portion of
assessments receivable due within the current fiscal pericd is considered to be susceptible to accrual as
revenue of the current period.

The District reports the following major governmental fund:

General Fund

The general fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The District reports the following major proprietary fund:

Water and Sewer Fund

The water and sewer fund accounts for the water, sewer, and irrigation operations of the District that are
financed and supported primarily by user charges and assessments.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
District's enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses of the
enterprise fund include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements.

DRAFT

17



NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government'’s policy to use
restricted resources first for qualifying expenditures, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity

Restricted Assets
These assets represent cash and investments set aside pursuant to Bond covenants or other contractual
restrictions.

Deposits and Investments
The government's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand and demand deposits.

The District has elected to proceed under the Alternative Investment Guidelines as set forth in Section
218.415 (17) Florida Statutes. The District may invest any surplus public funds in the following:

a) The Local Government Surplus Trust Funds, or any intergovernmental investment pool
authorized pursuant to the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act;

b) Securities and Exchange Commission registered money market funds with the highest credit
quality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency;

c) Interest bearing time deposits or savings accounts in qualified public depositories;

d) Direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury.

Securities listed in paragraph c and d shall be invested to provide sufficient liquidity to pay obligations as
they come due.

The District records all interest revenue related to investment activities in the respective funds.
Investments are measured at amortized cost or reported at fair value as required by generally accepted
accounting principles.

Inventories and Prepaid ltems
Inventories represent meter supply carried at historical cost determined on a first-in, first-out basis. The
District does not have any material inventory balances as of September 30, 2024.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items.

Capital Assets
Capital assets which include property, plant and equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,

sidewalks and similar items) are reported in the government activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual
cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized
as projects are constructed.
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NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Assets. Liabilities and Net Position or Equity (Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment of the District are depreciated using the straight-line method over the

following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Infrastructure 15-30
Improvements other than buildings 5-—48
Equipment 5-15

In the governmental fund financial statements, amounts incurred for the acquisition of capital assets are
reported as fund expenditures. Depreciation expense is not reported in the governmental fund financial
statements.

Unearned Revenue
Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with resources that have been received, but
not yet earned.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported
as liabilities in the statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized
ratably over the life of the Bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of applicable premiums or discounts.
Bond issuance costs are expensed when incurred.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize premiums and discounts, as well as
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts
on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the
actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resolrces, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources {expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future pericd(s) and so will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Fund Equity/Net Position
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report non spendable and restricted fund balance for

amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally resiricted by outside parties for use for a
specific purpose. Assignments of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject fo
change. ,

DRAFT
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity (Continued)

The District can establish limitations on the use of fund balance as follows:

Committed fund balance — Amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a
formal action (resolution) of the Board of Supervisors. Commitments may be changed or lifted only by
the Board of Supervisors taking the same formal action (resolution) that imposed the constraint
originally. Resources accumulated pursuant to stabilization arrangements sometimes are reported in
this category.

Assigned fund balance — Includes spendable fund balance amounts established by the Board of
Supervisors that are intended to be used for specific purposes that are neither considered restricted
nor committed. The Board may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance
to cover differences in estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year's appropriated
budget. Assignments are generally temporary and normally the same formal action need not be taken
to remove the assignment.

The District first uses committed fund balance, followed by assigned fund balance and then unassigned
fund balance when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted
fund balance classifications could be used.

Net position is the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources. Net position in the government-wide financial statements are categorized
as net investment in capital assets, restricted or unrestricted. Net investment in capital assets represents
net position related to infrastructure and property, plant and equipment. Restricted net position
represents the assets restricted by the District's Bond covenants or other contractual restrictions.
Unrestricted net position consists of the net position not meeting the definition of either of the other two
components.

Other Disclosures

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

NOTE 3 - BUDGETARY INFORMATION

The District is required to establish a budgetary system and an approved Annual Budget. Annual
Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for the general
fund. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

The District follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements.

a) Each year the District Manager submits to the District Board a proposed operating budget for the
fiscal year commencing the following October 1.

b) Public hearings are conducted to obtain public comments.

c) Prior to October 1, the budget is legally adopted by the District Board.

d) All budget changes must be approved by the District Board.

e) The budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

f)  Unused appropriation for annually budgeted funds lapse at the end of the year.
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NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS

The District's cash balances were entirely covered by federal depository insurance or by a collateral pool
pledged to the State Treasurer. Florida Statutes Chapter 280, "Florida Security for Public Deposits Act”,
requires all qualified depositories to deposit with the Treasurer or another banking institution eligible
collateral equal to various percentages of the average daily balance for each month of all public deposits
in excess of any applicable deposit insurance held. The percentage of eligible collateral (generally, U.S.
Governmental and agency securities, state or local government debt, or corporate bonds) to public
deposits is dependent upon the depository's financial history and its compliance with Chapter 280. In the
event of a failure of a qualified public depository, the remaining public depositories would be responsible
for covering any resulting losses.

NOTE 5 — INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Interfund receivables and payables at September 30, 2024 were as follows:

Fund Receivable Payable

General $ 66450 § -

Water and sewer - 66,450
Total § 66450 $ 66450

The outstanding balances hetween funds result primarily from the time lag between the dates that
transactions are recorded in the accounting system and payments between funds are made. In the case
of the Disirict, the balances hetween the general fund and the water and sewer fund relate to
expenditures paid out of the general fund on behalf of the water and sewer fund.

NOTE 6 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the governmental activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024 was as
follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land and land improvements 3 347,438 § 583847 § - $ 931,283
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 347,436 583,847 - 931,283
Capital assets, being depreciated
Infrastructure 1,319,737 - - 1,319,737
Improvements other than buildings 110,121 - - 110,121
Equipment 27,355 - - 27,355
Total capital assets, being depreciated 1,457,213 - - 1,457,213
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure 1,066,038 20,311 - 1,086,349
Improvements other than buildings 105,055 408 - 105,463
Fuipment 27,355 - - 27,355
Total accurnulated depreciation 1,198,448 20,719 - 1,219,167
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 258,765 (20,719) - 238,046
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 606,201 § 563,128 § - $ 1,169,329

Depreciation expense was charged to the maintenance and operations function.

DRAFT
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NOTE 6 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Capital asset activity for the business-type activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024 was as
follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business type activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land and land improvements 3 599,675 § - $ - 3 599,675
Construction in progress - 66,875 - 66,875
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 599 675 66,875 - 666,550
Capital assets, being depreciated
Improvements other than buildings 15,531,541 167,022 - 15,698,563
Equipment 287,662 - - 287,662
Total capital assets, being depreciated 15,819,203 167,022 - 15,986,225
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Machinery and equipment 8,715,197 459 376 - 9.174,573
Irrigation system 204,340 15,735 - 220,075
Total accumulated depreciation 8,919,537 475111 - 9,394,648
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 6,899,666 (308,089) - 6,591,577
Business type activities capital assets, net $ 7499341 § (241214) § - $ 7258127

NOTE 7 - MANAGEMENT COMPANY

The District has contracted with a management company to perform management advisory services,
which include financial and accounting advisory services. Certain employees of the management
company also serve as officers of the District. Under the agreement, the District compensates the
management company for management, accounting, financial reporting, computer and other
administrative costs.

NOTE 8 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The District has obtained commercial insurance from
independent third parties to mitigate the costs of these risks; coverage may not extend to all situations.
There were no settled claims during the past three years.

NOTE 9 — CONTINGENCIES

The District is a defendant in pending litigation by Prepmac, LLC and Alligator Boys, LLC asserting that
the adoption, Levy and imposition of certain non-ad valorem assessments on boat slips owned by the
Plaintiffs were improperly noticed and adopted. The District has vigorously defended this litigation, has
denied the allegation and has filed various affirmative defenses with regards to the allegations. Some
discovery has transpired. The outcome of any litigation is uncertain, and the District will continue to
defend itself in this allegation.

The District is the Plaintiff in a lawsuit against the Districts former management company (Premier District
Management LLC). The lawsuit seeks the delivery of Districts public records to the current District
manager and custodian of records. Discovery has been initiated.
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PORT OF THE ISLANDS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

COLLIER COUNTY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL — GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Variance with

Budgeted | Final Budget -
Amounts Actual Positive
Original & Final Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Assessments $ 437,678 % 437,120 $ {558)
Miscellaneous 10,000 91,740 81,740
Interest income 164,000 184,947 20,947
Total revenues 611,678 713,807 102,129
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 131,625 162,196 (30,571)
Maintenance and operations 480,053 319,818 160,238
Capital outlay - 583,847 (583,847)
Total expenditures 611,678 1,065,858 {454,180)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures $ - (352,051) _§ (352,051)
Fund balance - beginning 3,440,034
Fund balance - ending $ 3,087,983

DRAFT
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PORT OF THE ISLANDS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
COLLIER COUNTY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The District is required to establish a budgetary system and an approved Annual Budget for the general
fund. The District's budgeting process is based on estimates of cash receipts and cash expenditures
which are approved by the Board. The budget approximates a basis consistent with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (generally accepted accounting principles).

The legal level of budgetary control, the level at which expenditures may not exceed budget, is in the
aggregate. Any budget amendments that increase the aggregate budgeted appropriations must be
approved by the Board of Supervisors. Actual general fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2024 exceeded appropriations by $454,180. The over expenditures were funded by
available fund balance.

-
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PORT OF THE ISLANDS COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
COLLIER COUNTY, FLORIDA
OTHER INFORMATION — DATA ELEMENTS
REQUIRED BY FL STATUTE 218.39(3)(C)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

UNAUDITED
Hement Comments

Number of District employees compensated in the last pay period of 5
the District’s fiscal year being reported.
Number of independent contractors compensated to w hom
nonemployee compensation w as paid in the last month of the District's 0
fiscal year being reported.
Employee compensation $ 11,800.00
Independent contractor compensation 0
Construction projects to begin on or after October 1; (>$65K) 0
Ad Valorem taxes; Not applicable
Non ad valorem special assessments;

Special assessment rate Operations and maintenance - $403.11

Enterprise - $1,403.00
Special assessments collected $ 437,120.00

Qutstanding Bonds:

Not applicable

vy
)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Supervisors
Port of the Islands Community Improvement District
Collier County, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of Port of the Islands Community
Improvement District, Collier County, Florida (“District”) as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic
financial statements, and have issued our opinion thereon dated Xxxx, 2025.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal conirol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Xxxx, 2025

DRAFT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE
REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES, REQUIRED BY
RULE 10.556(10) OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

To the Board of Supervisors
Port of the Islands Community Improvement District
Collier County, Florida

We have examined Port of the Islands Community Improvement District, Collier County, Florida's
(‘District”) compliance with the requirements of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, in accordance with
Rule 10.556(10) of the Auditor General of the State of Florida during the fiscal year ended September 30,
2024. Management is responsible for the District's compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the District’s compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the District complied, in all material respects,
with the specified requirements referenced in Section 218.415, Florida Statutes. An examination involves
performing procedures to obtain evidence about whether the District complied with the specified
requirements. The nature, timing, and extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgment,
including an assessment of the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error. We
believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the District's compliance with
specified requirements.

We are required to be independent and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
relevant ethical requirements relating to the examination engagement.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2024.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee, members
of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General,
management, and the Board of Supervisors of Port of the Islands Community Improvement District,
Collier County, Florida and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Xxxx, 2025
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MANAGEMENT LETTER PURSUANT TO THE RULES OF
THE AUDITOR GENERAL FOR THE STATE OF FLORIDA

Ta the Board of Supervisors
Port of the Islands Community Improvement District
Collier County, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of Port of the Islands Community
Improvement District ("District”) as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024, and have issued
our report thereon dated Xxxx, 2025,

Auditor's Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards; and Independent Auditor's Report on an examination conducted in
accordance with A/CPA Professional Standards, AT-C Section 315, regarding compliance reauirements
in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Disclosures in those reports, which are
dated Xxxx, 2025, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Purpose of this Letter

The purpose of this letter is to comment on those matters required by Chapter 10.550 of the Rules of the
Auditor General for the State of Florida. Accordingly, in connection with our audit of the financial
statements of the District, as described in the first paragraph, we report the following:

. Current year findings and recommendations.
ll. Status of prior year findings and recommendations.
Ill. Compliance with the Provisions of the Auditor General of the State of Florida.

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor
General, Federal and other granting agencies, as applicable, management, and the Board of Supervisors
of Port of the Islands Community improvement District, Collier County, Florida and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We wish to thank Port of the Islands Community Improvement District, Collier County, Florida and the

personnel associated with it, for the opportunity to be of service fo them in this endeaveor as well as future
engagements and the courtesies extended to us.

Xxxx, 2025
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REPORT TO MANAGEMENT

. CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

None

II. PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

None

lll. COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL OF THE STATE OF
FLORIDA

Unless otherwise required to be reported in the auditor's report on compliance and internal controls,
the management letter shall include, but not be limited to the following:

1.

A statement as to whether or not corrective actions have been taken to address findings
and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report.

There were no significant findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial
audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023.

Any recommendations to improve the local governmental entity's financial management.

There were no such matters discovered by, or that came to the attention of, the auditor, to be
reported for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024,

Noncompliance with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have
occurred, or are likely to have occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that
is less than material but which warrants the attention of those charged with governance.

There were no such matters discovered by, or that came to the attention of, the auditor, to be
reported, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2024.

The name or official title and legal authority of the District are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

The District has not met one or more of the financial emergency conditions described in Section
218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

We applied financial condition assessment procedures and no deteriorating financial conditions
were noted as of September 30, 2024. It is management’s responsibility to monitor financial
condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by
management and the review of financial information provided by same.

Management has provided the specific information required by Section 218.39(3)(c) in the Other
Information section of the financial statements on page 25.
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ATTORNEYS AT LAW

February 21, 2025

By certified mail, return receipt requested

Lindsay J. Case
119 N Wahsatch Avenue
Colorado Springs, CA 80903

Subject: Courtesy Notice re Upcoming Utility ERC Payment

Mr. Case,

This firm serves as general counsel to the Port of the Islands Community
Improvement District (“POICID").

Pursuant to the Closing Agreement dated September 22, 2022, and the
subsequent Extension Request that was granted by POICID dated
September 23, 2024, by way of the Amendment to Closing Agreement,
$528,000.00 is due for Utility ERCs on March 22, 2025.

By this letter, does not assume any obligation to provide notice. Instead,
this letter is being provided as a courtesy.

POICID looks forward to receiving the above referenced payment.

Sincerely,

Doy 0. Lol

Zachary W. Lombardo, Esq.





